VANCOUVER SENATE

MINUTES OF 15 May 2013

Attendance

Present: Prof. S.J. Toope (President and Chair), Mr. C. Eaton (Acting Secretary), Mr T. Ahmed, Dr R. Anstee, Dean G. Averill, Dr K. Baimbridge, Dr J. Belanger, Ms E. Biddlecombe, Dean M.A. Bobinski, Principal H. Brock, Mr B. Caracheo, Dr G. Chapman, Dr W. Dunford, Mr P. Edgcumbe, Dr D. Farrar (Provost and Vice-President, Academic), Mr D. Fernandez, Ms V. Goyal, Dr S. Grayston, Mr S. Haffey, Dr. W. Hall, Dean J. Innes, Dr I. Ivanov, Ms J. Jagdeo, Dr S. Knight, Dr U. Kumar, Dr B.S. Lalli, Mr C. Leonoff, Dr P. Leung, Dr P. Loewen, Prof. B. MacDougall, Mr T. MacLachlan, Ms K. Mahal, Ms M. Maleki, Dr F. Marra, Ms N. Marshall, Dr P. Marshall, Ms M. McKenna, Mr W. McNulty, Ms S. Morgan-Silvester (Chancellor), Dr I. Parent, Ms M. Patton, Dean S. Peacock, Dr J. Plessis, Mr M. Prescott, Dr L. Rucker, Dr S. Singh, Dr R. Sparks, Dean G. Stuart, Mr M. Thom, Mr D. Verma, Dr M. Vessey, Dr L. Walker, Dr R. Windsor-Liscombe.

Regrets: Mr G. Beales, Dr L. Burr, Mr C. Chan, Dr P. Choi, Ms L.M. Collins, Prof. B. Craig, Rev. Dr S. Farris, Dean B. Frank, Prof. B. Goold, Rev. Dr M. Hagemoen, Dean *pro tem*. E. Hall, Dr P. Harrison, Dean R. Helsley, Dean M. Isman, Ms N. Karimi, Ms A. Kessler, Mr J. Lee, Dr W McKee, Principal L. Nasmith, Dr D. O'Donoghue, Dr K. Patterson, Dr N. Perry, Dean *pro tem*. S. Porter, Dr R. Reid, Dean *pro tem*. W. Riggs, Dr A. Riseman, Ms T. Rosseel, Dean C. Shuler, Ms T. Shum, Dr D. Simunic, Dr B. Stelck, Ms S. Sterling, Dr S. Thorne, Dr R. Wilson, Dr R. Winter, Dr D. Witt.

Senate Membership

The Acting Secretary announced that Mssrs Barak Caracheo and Philip Edgcumbe were acclaimed as elected to the Senate Nominating Committee until 31 March 2014 and thereafter until replaced.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

William McNulty	}	That the Minutes of the Meeting of 17 April 2013
Kenneth Baimbridge		be adopted as presented.

Approved.

Business Arising from the Minutes

Senator Knight asked if any further information was presented to the Board of Governors on Vantage College following Senate's approval in March.

The President advised that the concept presented to the Board was the same as presented to the Senate.

Dr Farrar added that further financial information was to be presented to the Board at its June meeting. More information would be available in September.

In response to a question posed at the previous meeting, the Acting Secretary advised that 183 Major Entrance Scholarships were awarded in the previous year. Of these, 95 are renewable, 74 one time, and 14 are specifically targeted to aboriginal students (half of which are renewable). The program budget is \$948 825.

Remarks from the Chair

The President noted that the recent provincial government election raises four items of focus:

- The Research Universities' Council put together an Opportunity Agenda and we will continue to move this agenda forward with Government, which a specific focus on graduate student spaces, student financial assistance, and a stable research funding model on the provincial level;
- Discussion on the position of universities within the government reporting entity universities being removed would give us more flexibility for capital projects;
- An emphasis beyond the Opportunity Agenda for graduate student support; and
- The current Provincial budget plan, which would have the university sector absorbing a \$20 million cut next year and a \$50 million the year after.

With relation to copyright, Professor Toope advised Senate that the Access Copyright consortium has launched a suit against York University; this action underscores the importance of UBC's adherence and compliance with copyright rules. The President drew senators' attention to the updated UBC copyright website – including copyright guidance, fair dealing guidance, and frequently asked questions – at copryright.ubc.ca and reminded them that CWL account holders are being asked to review and acknowledge this information whenever material is updated (and at least annually). Professor Toope further noted that the Association of Universities and Colleges of Canada (AUCC) has elected to assist York in its defence despite AUCC's agreement with Access Copyright. The President expressed his thanks to the Library, legal counsel's office, and faculties for their work in this area.

The President drew senators' attention to the Higher Education Quality Council of Ontario (HEQCO) survey on doctoral enrolment at Ontario universities; HEQCO has noted that over the past 10 years, doctoral enrolments have doubled at Ontario universities, 2/3rds of those students aspire to professorial roles and that fewer than 25% will be able to do so. Professor Toope noted that it was important for all universities to be aware of these statistics and how they are shared with applicants to doctoral programs.

Senator Baimbridge asked if a part of these HEQCO results were caused by longer-duration PhD programs.

The President replied that he did not think this to be the case, but he shared the concern with regards to time to completion for PhD degrees.

Senator Loewen noted that the Faculty of Graduate [and Postdoctoral] Studies considered this at a recent meeting; he suggested that there was some concern amongst doctoral

students that they would be stigmatized if they did not go into academic careers upon graduation.

Council of Senates Budget Committee Vancouver Sub-Committee

The Sub-Committee Chair, Dr William Dunford, presented an annual report on the Sub-Committee's activities. He noted that the Sub-Committee was considering changing the way it operates and recently has had a number of joint meetings with the Academic Building Needs and the Library Committees. Senator Dunford suggested that the committee was interested in having a more public profile and has set up a mechanism for faculty, students, and others to email their comments; a small number have done so to date.

The Sub-Committee Chair noted that the Sub-Committee had recently discussed the maintenance of UBC classrooms in light of decreases in funding from the Province, the issue of a new Faculty Lounge in the University Centre similar to the former Faculty Club (now Sage Bistro), and the rigidity of our overall budget against our relative good standing compared to many other universities. He noted that the two largest areas for potential revenue were summer use of campus and an increase in international students, both of which are being pursued.

In response to a question from Senator Belanger, Senator Dunford reminded senators that the budgets of the two campuses were kept separately.

Candidates for Degrees and Diplomas

Lance Rucker Rhodri Windsor Liscombe	}	That the candidates for degrees and diplomas, as recommended by the Faculties, be granted the degree or diploma for which they were recommended, effective May 2013, and that a committee comprised of the Registrar, the appropriate dean, and the Chair of the Vancouver Senate be empowered to make any necessary adjustments.

NB: (2/3 majority required)

Senator Baimbridge asked if students were allowed to vote on this motion.

The Chair advised that they were full members of Senate and could vote.

Approved.

Senate Academic Building Needs Committee

The Chair of the Committee, Dr Robert Sparks, presented its annual report. He expressed his thanks to Stephanie Oldford of the Senate office for her work over the past year. He noted that the joint meetings held between committees were very useful to avoid the silo and segmentation of information and decisions around UBC. Dr Sparks noted that each year the Committee's members also participated on the Property and Planning Advisory Committee. The Committee focused on learning spaces this year as it did last; this was partially due to the changes in the organization of the former Classroom Services. The Committee has been assured that the new organization of our classroom management and scheduling functions is operating acceptably. For the next year, Dr Sparks advised that his Committee has decided to focus on heritage policy in light of campus development, ongoing discussions on accessibility, and green space.

Senator Mahal asked if an assessment had been done for new infrastructure required by increases in international enrolment.

Senator Sparks replied that UBC was considering these issues; notably there was a utilization audit done last year of our 750 classrooms. He suggested looking at how we can mobilize those rooms currently "reserved" by faculties for specific or limited usage; and a second audit is being planned for classroom quality.

Academic Policy Committee

Dr Philip Loewen presented on behalf of Dr Paul Harrison, explaining the history of and motivation for the proposal.

CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY LLM (BUSINESS LAW) MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Philip Loewen	}	That Senate approve the Law Faculty to re-join
Mary Anne Bobinski		the partnership between the Law Faculties of
		Chulalongkorn University in Thailand, Kyushu
		University in Japan, the University of Victoria in
		British Columbia, and the University of
		Washington in Washington State, to assist in the
		delivery of the LLM (Business Law) at
		Chulalongkorn University under the terms as set
		out in the attached 2013 Memorandum of
		Understanding.

Senator Loewen presented, explaining the history of and motivation for the proposal.

Approved.

POLICY V-302.1 - GRADUATE STUDENT LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Philip Loewen	}	<i>That Senate approve the attached policy V-302.1:</i>
Joe Belanger		Graduate Student Leaves of Absence as proposed.

Senator Vessey asked if we expected students to not think about their graduate programs while on leave.

Senator Loewen replied that we would have to be reasonable in applying this rule, but clearly we could not enforce a rule requiring students not to think about their research areas while on leave.

Approved.

Admissions Committee

The Committee Chair, Dr Robert Sparks, presented.

MASTER OF ADVANCED STUDIES IN ARCHITECTURE – CHANGE IN APPLICATION DEADLINE

Robert Sparks	}	That Senate approve the revised application
Lance Rucker		deadline for applicants to the Master of
		Advanced Studies in Architecture, for entry to
		the 2014 Winter Session and thereafter.

Dr Sparks noted that this was a nominal change to be more in line with the deadlines at other institutions.

Approved.

COMMITTEE APPROVAL PROCESSES – REQUEST FOR DELEGATED AUTHORITY

Robert Sparks Lance Rucker	}	That Senate delegate to the Admissions Committee the authority to grant final approval of nominal changes to admission requirements and editorial changes to Calendar language related to admission, as defined in the attached proposal.

NB: (2/3 majority required)

Senator Sparks noted that the Senate Admissions Committee looked at 28 proposals last year, 13 of which were editorial or minor in nature. He suggested that this unreasonably took up Senate's time. Dr Sparks went on to explain the proposed approval system for editorial changes.

Richard Anstee spoke in favour of the proposal.

Approved.

ANNUAL REPORT ON APPEALS AND OTHER MATTERS OF DELEGATED AUTHORITY

Senator Sparks reported on three items on which the Committee had been given delegated responsibility by Senate: Grade adjustments under Policy J-50, student mobility agreements under Policy C-2, and student appeals.

Senator Haffey asked if the 4 percent increase was a change from previous years.

Richard Anstee advised that in previous years it was 2 percent and the change was based on statistical evidence.

In response to a question from a student senator, Senator Sparks advised that we did not make changes such as this for BC applicants, although we did track schools relative to each other. Senator Singh asked if Alberta lowered grades from other jurisdictions.

A student senator asked if we lowered averages for students from jurisdictions where they did not perform well.

Senator Sparks confirmed that we did not do so.

Agenda Committee

The Chair of the Senate Agenda Committee, Dean Mary Anne Bobinski, presented.

ADJUSTMENT TO NOMINATING COMMITTEE PROCEDURES

Mary Anne Bobinski Rhodri Windsor-Liscombe	}	That section 25(g) of the Rules and Procedures of the Vancouver Senate be amended to read "The Nominating Committee shall review the terms of reference of Senate committees in the third year of each Senate.
		NB: (2/3 majority required)

Senator Bobinski advised that this change was to give effect to a Senate decision from several years ago to move away from a short annual review in favour of a more in-depth three-year review that was not properly reflected in the *Rules and Procedures of Senate*.

Approved.

ADMISSIONS COMMITTEE DELEGATED AUTHORITIES

Mary Anne Bobinski Judith Plessis	}	That section 28(a) of the Rules and Procedures of the Vancouver Senate be amended to read "Admissions Committee (to approve admissions matters in the summer months on the recommendation of the faculties and schools for implementation the following September, with the proviso that the matter must be ratified by Senate that September; to approve student mobility agreements on behalf of the Vancouver campus; to approve courses used the calculation of an admission average; to approve grade adjustments; to approve changes to existing admission requirements, that, in the view of the Committee are minor or editorial in nature; and to hear final appeals on applications for admission and re- admission to programs).
--------------------------------------	---	---

NB: (2/3 majority required)

Senator Bobinski advised that this change was to give effect to the previous resolution approved at the same meeting delegating editorial powers to the Senate Admissions Committee.

Approved.

Committee on Appeals of Academic Standing

The Chair of the Committee, Dr Lance Rucker, presented the Committee's annual report and drew Senate's attention to the Committee's general observations:

• The Committee continues to draw to the attention of faculties and departments the importance of following due process in all matters relating to student assessment, promotion and appeals. In particular, the Committee notes the importance of Faculties and Departments responding to requests for information within the required timeframes, in order to ensure that appeals proceed in a timely and efficient manner.

In order to address this issue, the Committee is in the process of considering specific concerns relating to the current Review of Assigned Standing policy, and may refer the matter to Senate with a recommendation for further action to the Academic Policy Committee, as appropriate.

• Another issue of concern was brought to the attention of the Committee in the past months during deliberations regarding appeals, relating to the University requirement for

preservation of final examinations. A final examination becomes the property of the University and must remain in the possession of the University for one year from the date of the examination, after which it should be destroyed or otherwise disposed of in accordance with <u>UBC Policy 117</u>. Members of the Committee have discovered that archived examinations for certain courses have been destroyed prior to the one year prescribed term.

Senator Rucker informed Senate that since last reporting to Senate in May 2012, nine (9) appeals proceeded to Committee hearings (as compared with 8 in the prior reporting period), of which three (3) were allowed and six (6) were dismissed. Details of each case were summarized in the presented report.

Dr Rucker further noted that the Committee is in the process of amending its procedures to be followed prior to the hearing, and at the hearing. For procedures prior to the hearing, the Committee is considering shortening the time for an appellant to submit the initial statement of appeal by five days (from 15 days to 10 days) and allowing the appellant five days after the Faculty response has been filed and forwarded to them to file a rebuttal. There is currently no provision for a written rebuttal and the Committee is of the opinion that the opportunity for the appellant to file a rebuttal will minimize the Chair and Committee having to consider additional new material on the day of the hearing.

Amendments to procedures at the hearing which are being considered by the Committee relate to attendance at the hearing. Over the past year, the Committee has dealt with several instances of a party (normally the appellant) either arriving late or failing to show up at the hearing without providing prior notice. The revisions under consideration will maximize fairness to the parties and ensure the efficient work of the Committee while preventing undue delay in the appeal process.

Also, the Committee's procedures at the hearing currently do not specify that it has the opportunity to question parties and witnesses during the hearing, despite the Committee's standard practice of doing so and its general mandate to seek full information at the hearing as required. Revised procedures at the hearing will alert parties to the fact that the Committee has specific opportunity to question them during the hearing and will indicate when the parties may expect this to happen. Currently, the Chair continues to so advise participants at each hearing as part of the opening remarks.

The ensure fairness and consistency in the appeal process for all students of the University, the Okanagan Senate Committee on Appeals of Standing and Discipline is currently considering similar revisions to its processes. It is expected that the changes will be presented to both Senates for approval in the fall.

Senator Baimbridge asked for clarification if it was the answers to examinations and not the unmarked exams that should be kept.

Dr Rucker confirmed that both the student answers and the examination questions put to them were to be kept.

Curriculum Committee

The Chair of the Senate Curriculum Committee, Dr Peter Marshall, presented.

MAY CURRICULUM REPORT

See Appendix A: Curriculum Report

Peter Marshall	}	That the new courses, changed courses, new minor,
André Ivanov		and program changes brought forward by the
		Faculties of Arts, Commerce and Business
		Administration, Graduate Studies (Applied Science,
		Commerce and Business Administration, Science),
		Land and Food Systems, and Medicine be approved.

Dr Marshall briefly outlined the nature of each of the curriculum proposals.

A student senator asked if there was a reason why the Faculty of Land & Food Systems co-op program was a series of 3-credit courses instead of 6 credits.

Senator Chapman replied that she believe this was because similar courses in the Faculty of Science had a 3-credit value, her faculty would confirm this.

Senator Marshall presented statistics on his committee's work this year. He expressed his thanks to the staff of the secretary for their work.

Approved.

CERTIFICATE PROGRAMS

Senator Marshall informed Senate that pursuant to the policy on Approval of Certificate Programs, the following new certificates have been approved by the Senate Curriculum Committee on behalf of the University:

Certificate in Digital Content and Communications Certificate in Organizational Coaching Certificate in Professional Communication Certificate in Residential Valuation

PHARMACEUTICAL SCIENCES COURSES CREDIT/D/FAIL (CR/D/F) ELIGIBILITY

The Committee Chair informed Senate that the Senate Curriculum Committee had determined that proposals to remove Credit/D/Fail eligibility for a significant number of courses within a program should be brought to Senate for information, to be included in the Senate record.

The rationale for removing the Credit/D/Fail eligibility for the courses below was that students in the Bachelor of Science in Pharmacy program are only eligible to take non-Pharmacy approved

electives under the Credit/D/Fail policy. In addition, Pharmaceutical Sciences (PHAR) courses are not open to students in other programs so non-Pharmacy students are not able to take these courses as electives under the Credit/D/Fail policy.

PHAR 201	PHAR 341	PHAR 405	PHAR 444	PHAR 461
PHAR 202	PHAR 342	PHAR 407	PHAR 448	PHAR 462
PHAR 220	PHAR 351	PHAR 408	PHAR 450	PHAR 471
PHAR 241	PHAR 352	PHAR 414	PHAR 451	PHAR 472
PHAR 303	PHAR 361	PHAR 415	PHAR 452	PHAR 498
PHAR 315	PHAR 362	PHAR 430	PHAR 453	PHAR 499
PHAR 321	PHAR 371	PHAR 435	PHAR 454	
PHAR 322	PHAR 399	PHAR 440	PHAR 455	
PHAR 323	PHAR 400	PHAR 441	PHAR 456	
PHAR 330	PHAR 401	PHAR 442	PHAR 460	

A student senator asked if non-Pharmacy students were ever allowed to take Pharmacy courses.

The Committee Chair replied that he did not know, but that this information could be brought forward to Senate.

Library Committee

The Chair of the Senate Library Committee, Dr Mark Vessey, presented its annual report. He drew senators' attention to the existence of Library Advisory Committees for each area of campus. He noted that he and the University Librarian had discussed a system of 12 to 15 Library Advisory Committees to consider particular needs and interests for various parts of the academic community.

Senator Vessey reminded Senate that the South Campus Library-Archival Facility was planned to accommodate 1.6 million books. This will be the first module of a possible six phases.

Senator Vessey expressed his thanks to his colleagues on the Committee and to the support staff of the Senate office, and to the University Librarian.

A student senator asked if those students in School of Library, Archives, and Information Sciences (SLAIS) programs would be given any opportunities to participate in the growth of the archive.

The University Librarian replied that several students were hired each year to work on projects and she would speak with the director of the school about further opportunities for involvement.

Nominating Committee

SENATE COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE REVIEW

Rhodri Windsor-Liscombe	}	That the recommendations concerning the
Robert Sparks		terms of reference and membership of Senate
		committees be approved as presented.

Senator Windsor-Liscombe explained that the role of the Senate Nominating Committee was to seek nominees and make recommendations to Senate, but it must be remembered that the final choice is Senate's to make.

Approved.

APPOINTMENT TO STUDENT SENATORS TO COMMITTEES OF SENATE AND COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL OF SENATES

Rhodri Windsor-Liscombe Philip Loewen	}	That Senate appoint student senators to the Committees of Senate as follows, effective until March 31, 2014 and thereafter until replaced:
		Academic Building Needs
		Mark Prescott
		Julienne Jagdeo
		Veni Goyal
		Veni Obyui
		Academic Policy
		Julienne Jagdeo
		Kiran MahalAdmissions
		Tanya Shum
		Casey Chan
		Agenda
		Philip Edgcumbe
		Kiran Mahal
		Anneala an Academic Standing
		Appeals on Academic Standing
		Casey Chan
		Tom MacLachlan Kingg Mahal
		Kiran Mahal
		Curriculum
		Graham Beales
		Tanya Shum
		Natalie Marshall
		Casey Chan
		Barak Caracheo
		Library
		Mark Prescott
		Nina Karimi
		Anne Kessler
		Melanie McKenna
		Student Appeals on Academic Discipline
		Tom MacLachlan
		Mona Maleki
		Nina Karimi
		Inna Karina
		Student Awards
		Veni Goyal
		Graham Beales

Teaching and Learning Mona Maleki Natalie Marshall Melanie McKenna

Tributes Melissa Patton

Elections Committee of the Council of Senates Kiran Mahal

Budget Committee of the Council of Senates Cole Leonoff

Council of Senates Vancouver Representative Committee 4 Julienne Jagdeo

Approved.

ELECTION OF MEMBERS TO THE COUNCIL OF SENATES

Rhodri Windsor-LiscombeThat SenateRichard AnsteePhilip Edge

That Senate elect Ms. Anne Kessler and Mr. Philip Edgcumbe to the Council of Senates.

Approved.

ADJUSTMENT TO STUDENT AWARDS COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Rhodri Windsor-LiscombeThat the membership of the Student AwardsGwen ChapmanCommittee be adjusted, to replace the ex-
officio member titles "Dean, Faculty of
Graduate Studies" and "Director, Graduate
Awards and Development, Faculty of

Graduate Studies" with "Dean, Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies" and "Director, Graduate Awards and Development, Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies," respectively, effective 1 July 2013.

Approved.

Student Appeals on Academic Discipline

The Committee Chair, Professor Bruce MacDougall presented. He noted that the Committee's work seemed particularly complicated this year. During the period from 1 May 2012 to 30 April 2013, the Senate Committee heard seven (7) appeals involving students disciplined by the President upon the recommendation of the President's Advisory Committee on Student Discipline. Of the appeals considered by the Senate Committee, one (1) was allowed and six (6) were dismissed. The details of each decision were set out in the Committee's report.

Student Awards Committee

See Appendix C: Awards Report

The Chair of the Student Awards Committee, Dr Sue Grayston, presented.

Sue Grayston	}	That Senate accept the awards as listed and	
Richard Anstee		forward them to the Board of Governors for	
		approval; and that letters of thanks be sent to	
		the donors.	

Senator Grayston noted that this batch of awards made \$46 000 in new student funding available.

Approved.

Tributes Committee

See Appendix D: Emeritus Appointments Dr Judith Plessis presented on behalf of the Senate Tributes Committee

Judith Plessis}That the attached list of individuals for
emeritus status be approved and that,
pursuant to section 9(2) of the University Act,
all persons with the ranks of Professor
Emeritus, Associate Professor Emeritus,
Assistant Professor Emeritus, Senior

Instructor Emeritus, General Librarian Emeritus or Administrative Librarian Emeritus be added to the Roll of Convocation.

Approved.

Report from the Provost

INTERCULTURAL UNDERSTANDING

Dr Farrar introduced Mr Alden Habecon, Director, Intercultural Understanding Strategy Development at the Office of the Vice-President Academic. He noted that prior to coming to UBC, Mr Habecon worked for the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation (CBC) and that he has spent the past few years working on a variety of projects for UBC including this plan.

Mr Habecon thanked Senate for the opportunity to present what was the the sixth iteration of the Intercultural Understanding plan. In opening, he suggested that the diversity of our student body was our greatest asset. 79% are multilingual, and 31% spoke at least one Chinese dialect. To define what "Intercultural Understanding" meant, the following definition was chosen:

Intercultural understanding refers to the breadth and depth of understanding across profound cultural difference wherein an individual or a group understands a variety of significant cultural experiences tied to forms of sociocultural difference, such as: (1.) ethnicity, race, religion, gender identity and expression, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, socio-economic class, immigration and in many cases academic, employment or professional status; (2.) the cultural histories, creative practices and faith perspectives of various social groups within a society; (3.) the interrelations between dominant and nondominant cultures; (4.) the dynamics of difference; and (5.) the impact of these factors on power relations.

He noted that UBC could be a multicultural place without necessarily being an intercultural place, and explained the four foundational ideas behind Intercultural Understanding:

- Is not an end to itself, but contributing to well-being or social sustainability;
- Is the natural progression of multiculturalism—distinct from and *more than* multiculturalism;
- Involves the development of *intercultural fluency*, the combination of attitudes towards diversity, knowledge about cultures and difference, and interpersonal skills that contribute to one's capacity for communication and relationship-building across different cultures; and
- Requires a cultural shift through sustained learning and appropriate adjustments to the University's norms and expectations, policies, protocols and processes

Senator Singh asked how the plan would relate with our other strategic plans.

Mr Habecon replied that we are viewing it as an extension of other plans. For instance, with the Aboriginal Strategy we are viewing cultural fluency as integral. We are also framing this as a strategy around social sustainability.

Senator Chapman expressed her support and asked about faculty members being asked to focus on too many things right now. She questioned how we can align these things so people do not feel overwhelmed.

Mr Habecon replied that our work with faculty has been focused on resolving their issues prior to asking them to do more. We need to focus on removing challenges and struggles.

Senator Knight noted that the document was very heavy on process and asked what was the end goal of the strategy.

Mr Habecon replied that the overall goal was intellectual diversity, and using our assets and addressing our needs. We need to support our aspirations in student learning, research excellence, and community engagement. This should not be another goal; this should be a means to achieve those goals.

Senator Windsor-Liscombe noted that all persons can suffer from atavism and we need training to deal with the politics around culture, religion, and faith.

Mr Habecon replied that work in this area was underway but not many have done work in this area in Canada. The University of Toronto has done some work on interfaith issues. He suggested that this may be reframed as an issue of student wellness. He further noted that while 40% of UBC students are involved in faith groups on campus, the general perception amongst students is that only 10% are.

The President suggested that we need to realize that we are not operating from a neutral place. There are constant issues and problems that need to be managed. This is an intriguing set of issues for a public, secular university.

The Chancellor expressed her support for the document, especially the framework and the language used. She stated that a lot of this seemed to be life skills that had direct applicability outside of the University; Canada is a trading nation and it is essential that we figure this out so we can share it more broadly with the community.

Senator Hall commended the report and asked about the notion of sensitivity around differences. In Nursing, they had concerns around "othering" due to language used.

Mr Habecon replied that they were working on a series of guides for how colleagues have dealt with similar issues but we are avoiding workshops in favour of real examples.

A student senator raised the issue of diversity in ability. She noted that only a small number of students were registered with Access and Diversity but that many did not due to a stigma.

Mr Habecon noted that this was covered by our definition of intercultural understanding but that this wasn't addressed much in his current work.

Senator Thom asked what a reasonable timeline was for implementation

Mr Habecon replied that 5 to 10 years was a reasonable estimate; any kind of formal launch is at least a year away.

Senator Knight stated that tolerance and understanding moved us to equity and better citizenship.

Presidential Search Committee

The Acting Secretary advised that as a result of the ballot conducted, Senators Harrison and Windsor-Liscombe have been elected to the Presidential Search Committee.

Other Business

OPEN ACCESS POSITION STATEMENT

David Farrar advised that for the past year or so the Scholarly Communications Committee had worked on a statement on open access. It will be circulated to Senators and brought to Senate for consideration in the fall.

Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:20 pm.

Appendix A: Curriculum Report

Faculty of Arts

New Courses:

CRWR 209 (3) CRWR 230 (3) CRWR 309 (3-12)d

Faculty of Commerce & Business Administration

New Courses:

COMM 126 (3) BUSI 433 (3)

Program Change:

Bachelor of Business in Real Estate>Degree Requirements>Real Estate Courses

Faculty of Graduate Studies

Applied Science:

New Courses: BMEG 510 (4) EECE 508 (3) EECE 510 (3) EECE 535 (3) MECH 528 (3)

New Course Code:

NAME - Naval Architecture and Marine Engineering

Commerce and Business Administration:

Program Change:

Master of Business Administration Calendar Entry

New Courses:

BABS 540 (0.8) BAMA 541 (0.8) BA 504 (3) EMBA 526 (1.5)

Science

New Courses: BIOL 560 (3)

PHYS 572 (3)

Faculty of Land & Food Systems

New Courses:

FRE 460 (3) LFS 297 (3) Co-operative Education Program LFS 398 (3) LFS 399 (3) LFS 498 (3) LFS 499 (3)

New Minor:

Minor in Science

Faculty of Medicine

Changed Courses:

MEDG 419 (3) MEDG 420 (3)

Appendix B: Awards Report

BLAKES Scholar Award in Law - Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP offers a \$5,000 renewable award for a J.D. student entering second year who demonstrated academic excellence in their first year of studies (achieving a grade in the top 10% of the class). The award is renewable provided the student maintains academic standing in the top 20% of the class during their second year. Preference will be given to a student who demonstrates involvement in community service and extra-curricular activities, and individuals from groups that are underrepresented in the legal profession. Recommendation is made by the Faculty of Law. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

BULL Housser Entrance Award – Bull Housser is pleased to offer a \$15,000 award to a student who is entering their first year of the JD program, has demonstrated academic excellence, and has also shown entrepreneurial initiative or a commitment to community service or philanthropy; qualities and attributes that the firm holds as its core values. The award is made based on the recommendation of the Faculty of Law. Students must apply for consideration and application details will be provided. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Marlene FLATER Memorial Scholarship in Music – A \$1,000 scholarship is offered by the Estate of Marlene Flater to an undergraduate student entering their first year of study in the School of Music. Preference will be given to female candidates. Recommendation is made by the School of Music. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Mark HARRIS Memorial Scholarship in Film Studies – A scholarship of \$1,000 is offered by family, friends, alumni and colleagues in memory of Dr. Mark Harris (MA'92, PhD'98). A much-loved UBC Film Studies instructor, Mark inspired students with his deep passion for cinema as well as his incredible energy, warmth and humour. He was a leading authority on international films and veteran movie critic for the Georgia Straight. The award is offered to a fourth year student in the BA in Film Studies Major or Honours programs or to a student in the MA in Film Studies program, with preference given to students who have demonstrated a passion for cinema. The award is made on the recommendation of the Department of Theatre and Film and, in the case of a graduate student, in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Fred HERZOG Award in Visual Art - An award of \$2,500 is offered by the Y.P. Heung Foundation in honour of Fred Herzog. A pioneer of colour photography, Mr. Herzog has focused his lens on urban and street life in Vancouver for over 50 years. His substantial body of work has been shown in exhibitions across the country and around the globe. He worked for UBC as a medical photographer for many years, and has previously taught in the fine arts departments at UBC and SFU. The award is available to an outstanding undergraduate or graduate student pursuing a Fine Arts major in the Department of Art History, Visual Art and Theory who demonstrates volunteerism and community service. The award is made on the recommendation of the Department and, in the case of a graduate student, in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

INSTITUTE of Mental Health Award – Awards totaling \$2,100 are offered by the Institute of Mental Health and are awarded to second year MD candidates for the best original piece of work

that demonstrates insight into mental illness and/or addictions. The submission can be in any form such as an essay, reflection, story, video, song, poem or painting. The submission can be personal, fictional or anecdotal but should demonstrate that it is based on research and understanding. Awards are made on the recommendation of the Institute of Mental Health. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Howard A. LEACH Scholarship in Operations Research – A scholarship of \$5,000 has been established by HALCO Software Systems Ltd. in honour of their founder, Howard A. Leach, for a student entering fourth year in the Wood Products Processing program. Preference is given to students who have a demonstrated interest in the field of Operations Research. This award is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Forestry. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

LOTUS Light Charity Society Mu-Shu Lee Memorial Scholarship in Buddhist Studies -One scholarship of \$1,000 is offered by the Family of Mu-Shu Lee to recognize outstanding academic achievement in Buddhist studies at either the undergraduate or graduate level. Candidates must be Canadian Citizens, Permanent Residents or convention refugees with proof of status. Recommendations are made by the Department of Asian Studies, and in the case of graduate students in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2012/13 Academic Session)

LOTUS Light Charity Society Mu-Shu Lee Memorial Scholarship in Education - One scholarship of \$1,000 is offered by the Family of Mu-Shu Lee to an outstanding undergraduate or graduate student pursing a degree in Education who demonstrates academic excellence. Candidates must be Canadian Citizens, Permanent Residents or convention refugees with proof of status. Recommendations are made by the Faculty of Education, and in the case of graduate students in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2012/13 Academic Session)

LOTUS Light Charity Society Mu-Shu Lee Memorial Scholarship in Medicine - One scholarship of \$1,000 is offered by the Family of Mu-Shu Lee to an outstanding MD candidate who demonstrates academic excellence. Candidates must be Canadian Citizens, Permanent Residents or convention refugees with proof of status. Recommendations are made by the Faculty of Medicine, in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2012/13 Academic Session)

LOTUS Light Charity Society Mu-Shu Lee Memorial Scholarship in Pharmaceutical Science - One scholarship of \$1,000 is offered by the Family of Mu-Shu Lee to an outstanding undergraduate or graduate pharmaceutical science student who demonstrates academic excellence. Candidates must be Canadian Citizens, Permanent Residents or convention refugees with proof of status. Recommendations are made by the Faculty of Pharmaceutical Science, and in the case of graduate students, in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2012/13 Academic Session)

LOTUS Light Charity Society Mu-Shu Lee Memorial Scholarship in Social Work - One scholarship of \$1,000 is offered by the Family of Mu-Shu Lee to an outstanding undergraduate or graduate student in social work who demonstrates academic excellence. Candidates must be

Canadian Citizens, Permanent Residents or convention refugees with proof of status. Recommendations are made by the School of Social Work, and in the case of graduate students, in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2012/13 Academic Session)

Joan PILCHER Recreation Award – A \$1000 award has been endowed by Dr. Nestor Korchinsky in honour of Joan Pilcher and the significant role that Joan played in furthering the goals of university community-living through a vibrant intramural/recreation program. The award recognizes future outstanding recreation leaders by celebrating the contributions made by a student in the first year as a UBC Recreation Student Administrator. Recommendation is made by the Department of Athletics. (First Award Available in the 2013/14 Winter Session)

SUNSTAR G-U-M Leadership Award in Dental Hygiene - Scholarships totalling \$1,000 are offered by Sunstar G-U-M to fourth year students enrolled in the Dental Hygiene Degree Program who demonstrate leadership in their class or community. Financial need may be taken into consideration. Recommendations are made by the Faculty of Dentistry. (First Award Available in the 2013/14 Winter Session)

UNIVERSITY Women's Club of Vancouver Aboriginal Bursary in Medicine – A \$1,500 bursary is offered by the University of Women's Club of Vancouver to Aboriginal students in the Faculty of Medicine's MD undergraduate program. Preference is given to female Aboriginal students in good academic standing and with demonstrated financial need. The bursary is adjudicated by Enrolment Services. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

UNIVERSITY Women's Club of Vancouver Bursary in Midwifery – A \$1,500 bursary is offered by the University of Women's Club of Vancouver to students in the Faculty of Medicine's Midwifery Program. Preference is given to female students with demonstrated financial need and in good academic standing. The bursary is adjudicated by Enrolment Services. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Ian WALLACE Award in Art History - An award of \$2,500 is offered by the Y.P. Heung Foundation in honour of Ian Wallace (BA'66, MA'88, DLitt'10). A Vancouver-based artist, educator and art historian, Mr. Wallace is known throughout the world for his critical reflections and contributions as a pioneer in photo-conceptual art. He has served as a mentor and teacher to generations of artists, and has had a fundamental role in reinvigorating visual arts education in BC and Canada. The award is available to an outstanding undergraduate or graduate student pursuing an Art History major in the Department of Art History, Visual Art and Theory who demonstrates volunteerism and community service. The award is made on the recommendation of the Department and, in the case of a graduate student, in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Tom Henrick WALTER Occupational Therapy Award – An award of \$1,000 is offered by Heddi and Tony Walter in memory of their dear son Tom, who graduated with a BSc (OT) from UBC in 1988. The award will recognize students in their final year of the MOT program who have excelled in their degree through perseverance and hard work. The awards are made on the

recommendation of the Department of Occupational Therapy in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Scott WEEKES and Anne Laite Memorial Bursary in Geological Sciences – A bursary of \$1,000 has been endowed by Redstar Gold Corp., family and friends in the memory of Scott Weekes and Anne Laite for undergraduate students within the Department of Earth, Ocean and Atmospheric Sciences with a strong focus in geological sciences. While studying at UBC, lifelong passions for geology brought Scott and Anne together. Scott pursued a fulfilling career in mineral exploration, and rose through the ranks to serve as the President of Redstar Gold Corp. Anne entered into a career in science education and inspired high school students to pursue their scientific interests. Special consideration will be given to a student who demonstrates a keen interest in economic geology. The bursary is adjudicated by Enrolment Services. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Previously-Approved Awards with Changes in Terms or Funding Source:

#4817 Wendy FAN Memorial Scholarship - A \$2,975 scholarship has been endowed in memory of Wendy Fan for a student who is entering graduate studies in either Science, Applied Science, Medicine or Commerce and Business Administration. The award is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Graduate Studies.

<u>How amended</u>: opened up criteria so that candidates do not have to complete their undergraduate degree at an institution outside of North America.

#5380 - Fluor Canada Ltd. Scholarship in Civil Engineering - A scholarship of \$1,750 has been offered by Fluor Canada Ltd., to a co-op student entering the penultimate or final year of a program leading to an undergraduate degree in Civil Engineering. The award is made on the recommendation of the Head of the Department of Civil Engineering.

<u>How Amended</u>: Decreased the award value to \$1750 and included the criteria that the scholarship must go to a co-op student

#5381 -Fluor Canada Ltd. Scholarship in Electrical Engineering - A scholarship of \$1,750 has been offered by Fluor Canada Ltd., to a co-op student entering the penultimate or final year of a program leading to an undergraduate degree in Electrical Engineering. The award is made on the recommendation of the Head of the Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering.

<u>How Amended</u>: Decreased the award value to \$1750, removed computer engineering students as possible candidates and included the criteria that the scholarship must go to a co-op student

#5382 - Fluor Canada Ltd. Scholarship in Mechanical Engineering - A scholarship of \$1,750 has been offered by Fluor Canada Ltd., to a co-op student entering the penultimate or final year of a program leading to an undergraduate degree in Mechanical Engineering. The award is made on the recommendation of the Head of the Department of Mechanical Engineering.

<u>How Amended</u>: Decreased the award value to \$1750 and included the criteria that the scholarship must go to a co-op student

#2195 - Fluor Canada Ltd Scholarship in Mining or Mineral Processing - A scholarship of \$1,750 has been offered by Fluor Canada Ltd., to a co-op student entering the penultimate or final year of a program leading to an undergraduate degree in Mining and Mineral Process Engineering. The award is made on the recommendation of the Head of the Department of Mining and Mineral Process Engineering.

How Amended: Decreased the award value to \$1750 and included the criteria that the scholarship must go to a co-op student

Shaun Kenneth GAUTHIER (Shaun G) Scholarship in Cancer Research - Scholarships totalling \$1,000 have been endowed by friends and family of Shaun Gauthier who was a brilliant, intelligent, vibrant young man who touched many lives and had a wonderful enthusiasm for life. Candidates must be focused on cancer research with preference that the scholarships go to students specializing in soft tissue sarcoma, specifically Angiosarcoma. Recommendations will be made by the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (First Award Available in the 2012/2013 Winter Session)

How amended: revised the title to include Shaun's middle name, Kenneth.

#574 Harry LOGAN Memorial Scholarship - Harry Tremaine Logan (1887-1971), a graduate of McGill University, Rhodes Scholar, a graduate of Oxford University, and recipient in 1965 of the honorary degree of LL.D. from the University of B.C., joined the original Faculty of this University in 1915 after two years of teaching at McGill College. He taught in the Department of Classics, of which he was Head from 1949 to 1954, until his final retirement in 1967 at the age of eighty. His long career at the University was twice interrupted, first when he served in the 72nd Seaforth Highlanders of Canada and the Canadian Machine Gun Corps (1915-1919), second when he became Principal of Prince of Wales Fairbridge Farm School at Duncan, B.C. (1936-1946), and Secretary of the Fairbridge Society (1946-1949). His was a remarkable career: he held each academic rank, he helped to draw up the constitution of the Alma Mater Society, he participated in the Great Trek (1922), he sat as a member of Senate for twenty-four years and of the Board of Governors for five, he edited The Alumni Chronicle, he wrote the official history of the University (Tuum Est, 1958) and was named a Great Trekker by the Students in 1960. He was one of the outstanding teachers and to thousands of men and women he was teacher and adviser and friend. His interest in the affairs of the University remained all-encompassing until the day of his death. His many students and friends have contributed from all over the world to a fund that will produce a scholarship in honour of a teacher and a gentleman. A \$1,150 scholarship is awarded by the Committee to a student with a good academic standing, achievement in sport, and participation in other student activities. The award is open to students entering the penultimate or final year of a baccalaureate program, the first year of Graduate Studies, or students in the Faculties of Medicine, Dentistry or Law. The winner will normally be selected from candidates nominated for the Sherwood Lett Memorial Scholarship and will also receive the Harold B. and Nellie Boyes Memorial Scholarship of \$2,050.

<u>How amended:</u> amended list of eligible Post-Baccalaureate programs to include the Faculty of Law.

#8358 William McArthur Memorial Bursary - A \$600 bursary has been endowed by family and friends in loving memory of Dr. William (Bill) McArthur, who was the first Chief Coroner for British Columbia and, until his passing, pursued his love of medicine in part-time family practice. The award is offered to students in the Faculty of Science.

<u>How amended</u>: changed the criteria to offer a single bursary instead of multiple bursaries as per the donor's request.

#655 John H. MITCHELL Memorial Scholarship - A \$10,000 scholarship was established by his family, as a tribute to John Hardie Mitchell, a 1924 graduate in the Faculty of Arts. He devoted sixty-five years to developing the stevedoring business in British Columbia and was the owner and Chairman of the Board of Canadian Stevedoring Company Ltd. and Casco Terminals. The award is open to students entering the penultimate or final year of a baccalaureate program, the first year of Graduate Studies, or students in the Faculties of Medicine, Dentistry or Law. The selection is made by a special committee from among those candidates nominated by faculties for the Sherwood Lett Memorial Scholarship. Candidates are expected to have good academic standing, and have demonstrated achievement in sports and participation in student and community activities.

<u>How amended:</u> amended list of eligible Post-Baccalaureate programs to include the Faculty of Law.

#1810 - MONARCH Pediatric Dental Centre Bursary - Two bursaries of \$1,000 each are offered by Monarch Pediatric Dental Centre to a student in each of the third and fourth year of the DMD Program. Candidates are selected on the basis of financial need and are determined by Enrolment Services. (Revision to take effect in 2012/13Winter Session)

<u>How amended</u> – increase in the number of bursaries available and replaced eligible candidates from 1^{st} year students to 3^{rd} and 4^{th} year students. Removed any reference of the Orthodontic Dental Centre in the title and body of the description.

#1811 - MONARCH Pediatric Dental Centre Award - Two awards of \$1,000 each are offered by Monarch Pediatric Dental Centre to a student in each of the third and fourth year of the DMD Program who demonstrates excellence in pediatric dentistry. Recommendations are made by the Faculty of Dentistry. (Revision to take effect in 2012/13Winter Session)

<u>How amended</u> – change in the award classification from bursary to award, increased the number of awards available as well as the value of each award. 4^{th} year students included as eligible candidates and also removed reference of the Orthodontic Dental Centre in the title and body of the description.

#1823 - MONARCH Pediatric Dental Centre Graduate Fellowship - Three fellowships of \$2000 each are offered by Monarch Pediatric Dental Centre to first year dental students in the

Graduate Pediatric Program. To be considered candidates must be either a Canadian Citizen or Permanent Resident. Recommendations are made by the Faculty of Dentistry in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies. (Revision to take effect in the 2013/14 Winter Session)

<u>How amended</u> – Increased the number of fellowships and decreased the value of each fellowship. Slight change in the donor name with the removal of any reference to the Orthodontic Dental Centre in the title or body of the description.

#803 Kitzel Award in Applied Biology – A \$500 award is offered to a fourth year student in the B.Sc. (Applied Biology) Program who has demonstrated a strong sense of professionalism and community spirit and an understanding of the importance of, and a personal commitment to, primary agriculture. The award is established in honour of the Kitzel Family who, since 1977, have hosted at their dairy farm in Surrey, B.C. over 3,000 students and researchers from the Faculty of Land and Food Systems. The award is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Land and Food Systems.

<u>How amended:</u> change of program name from B.Sc. Agroecology to B.Sc. Applied Biology.

#723 John N SANDNESS Prize - A book prize valued at \$70 has been endowed in memory of John N. Sandness, who laid the foundations for a program in applied entomology in the Department of Plant Science. It is awarded on the basis of the best insect collection submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements of the course, APBI 327 (Introduction to Entomology), which is cross-listed with BIOL 327 (Introduction to Entomology).

<u>How amended:</u> AGRO 327 has been renamed APBI 327 and it is cross-listed with BIOL 327 Introduction to Entomology.

#4632 Don WEHRUNG International Student Award - Awards totalling \$45,000 have been endowed in honour of Dr. Donald A. Wehrung on the occasion of his stepping down as the founding Executive Director of UBC's International Student Initiative, in which capacity he served from 1996 to 2008. The awards recognize outstanding international students from developing countries who have achieved academic excellence under exigent circumstances and would be unable to pursue post-secondary education without assistance. Candidates for the award are nominated by secondary schools, as well as by international, community-based and non-governmental organizations. The value of each award depends on the candidate's financial circumstances and the costs of their program. The awards are made to students entering the University directly from secondary school and may be renewed for up to three additional years of undergraduate study or to degree completion, whichever is less, provided the recipient achieves satisfactory academic standing as determined by his or her Faculty, holds a valid Canadian Study Permit (student visa), and continues to demonstrate financial need. The awards are made on the recommendation of a selection committee comprised of faculty and staff from across the University, with input from members of the community.

How amended: removed "Humanitarian" from title.

Appendix C: Emeritus Report

Altman	Siemion	Clinical Professor Emeritus of Psychiatry
Breuil	Colette	Professor Emeritus of Wood Science
Buchanan	R. Alan	Clinical Professor Emeritus of Psychiatry
Carey	Stephen	Professor Emeritus of Language and Literacy Education
Cooper	John Xiros	Professor Emeritus of English
Coulter-Mackie	Marion	Associate Professor Emeritus of Paediatrics
Cramond	Patrick	Senior Instructor Emeritus of Mechanical Engineering
Ellis	Brian E.	Professor Emeritus of Botany
Fleming	Jonathan	Associate Professor Emeritus of Psychiatry
Gardiner	Daniel	Senior Instructor Emeritus of Commerce and Business Administration
Globerman	Judith	Associate Professor Emeritus of Population and Public Health
Grauer	Kit	Associate Professor Emeritus of Curriculum and Pedagogy
Guasparini	Roland	Clinical Professor Emeritus of Population and Public Health
Guilbaut	Serge	Professor Emeritus of Art History, Visual Art and Theory
Hawkins	Robert	Clincal Professor Emeritus of Orthopaedic Surgery
Jongbloed	Lynette	Associate Professor Emeritus of Occupational Sciences and Occupational Therapy
Mackie	George A.	Professor Emeritus of Biochemistry and Molecular Biology
Mathias	Richard G.	Professor Emeritus of Population and Public Health
McIntosh	Christopher	Professor Emeritus of Cellular and Physiological Sciences

Millar	John	Clinical Professor Emeritus of Population and Public Health
	50111	Professor Emeritus of Earth,
		Ocean and Atmospheric
Murray	James Wolfe	Sciences
папау		Clinical Professor Emeritus of
Nakielna	Barbara	Respiratory Medicine
		Associate Professor Emeritus
Novak	Mike David	of Applied Biology
		Professor Emeritus of
Pare	Peter David	Respiratory Medicine
		Senior Instructor Emeritus of
Park	Carol M.	Pathology
		Professor Emeritus of Central,
		Eastern and Northern
Petro	Peter	European Studies
		Professor Emeritus of
Doroth	Marion J.	Educational and Counselling
Porath		Psychology and Special
		Education
		Professor Emeritus of
		Language and Literacy
Purcell-Gates	Victoria L.	Education
		Clinical Professor Emeritus of
Rogers	Paul	Paediatrics
		Professor Emeritus of Civil
Russell	Alan David	Engineering
		Professor Emeritus of
Sanderson	David J.	Kinesiology
		Associate Professor Emeritus
Skura	Brenton J.	of Food, Nutrition and Health
		Clinical Professor Emeritus of
Smith	Derryck	Psychiatry
		Administrative Librarian
Stanton	Ralph	Emeritus
		Professor Emeritus of
Strong-Boag	Veronica	Educational Studies
		Senior Instructor Emeritus of
		Biochemistry and Molecular
Tiberiis	Bruce E.	Biology
		Professor Emeritus of
Ungerleider	Charles S.	Educational Studies
ongenerael		